1959

Moon Lake Electric Association Inc. et al v. Utah State Tax Commission : Brief of Defendant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The defendant is in substantial agreement with the statement of facts as set forth by the plaintiffs. There is no significant issue of fact. Defendant concedes that if Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953 and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended, are constitutional, the plaintiffs are entitled to the advantages therein contained. The constitutionality

of these statutes being the sole issue we here set forth the sections for analysis.

Section 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, provides:

“Property of cooperative nonprofit electric corporations organized under this chapter and operating facilities financed pursuant to the Rural Electrification Act of 1936, shall not be valued for the purpose of ad valorem taxation in excess of \$50 times the number of miles of primary distribution of transmission lines.”

Section 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended, provides:

“Property of cooperative nonprofit telephone corporations organized under this chapter and financed pursuant to the United States Rural Electrification Act of 1936, as amended, shall not be valued for the purpose of ad valorem taxation in excess of \$10.00 times the number of circuit miles of line constituting the telephone system.”

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

SECTION 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953 AND SECTION 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, AS AMENDED, VIOLATE SECTIONS 2 AND 3 OF ARTICLE XIII OF THE CONSTITUTION OF UTAH.

POINT II.

SECTIONS 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, AND 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, AS AMENDED, VIOLATE SEC-

TION 11, ARTICLE XIII, OF THE CONSTITUTION OF UTAH.

POINT III.

SECTIONS 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, AND 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, AS AMENDED, VIOLATE SECTION 26, ARTICLE VI, OF THE CONSTITUTION OF UTAH.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

SECTION 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953 AND SECTION 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, AS AMENDED, VIOLATE SECTIONS 2 AND 3 OF ARTICLE XIII OF THE CONSTITUTION OF UTAH.

Section 2, Article XIII of the Constitution of the State of Utah provides in part:

“All tangible property in the state, not exempt under the laws of the United States, or under this constitution, shall be taxed in proportion to its value, to be ascertained as provided by law. * * *”

Section 3, Article XIII of the Constitution of the State of Utah, provides in part:

“The Legislature shall provide by law a uniform and equal rate of assessment and taxation on all tangible property in the State, according to its value in money, and shall prescribe by law such regulations as shall secure a just valuation for taxation of such property, so that every person and corporation shall pay a tax in proportion to the value of his, her, or its tangible property, * * *.”

In *State v. Thomas*, 16 U. 86, 50 P. 615, this Court gave meaning to these sections as follows:

“* * * The real intent, however, of the framers of the constitution, is made more manifest in section 3 of article 13, which contains this language: ‘The legislature shall provide by law a uniform and equal rate of assessment and taxation on all property in the state, according to its value in money, and shall prescribe by general law such regulations as shall secure a just valuation for taxation of all property; so that every person and corporation shall pay a tax in proportion to the value of his, her, or its property.’ This provision is closely related to the one in section 2, and directs the legislature not only to provide a uniform and equal rate of assessment and taxation, so that every subject owning property shall pay the same rate of tax as every other such subject, but also declares that all property shall be assessed at a basis which shall be ‘according to its value in money.’ *It is evident that the term ‘according to its value in money’ means that all property shall be valued, for the purposes of assessment, as near as is reasonably practicable, at its full cash value; in other words, that the valuation for assessment and taxation shall be, as near as reasonably practicable, equal to the cash price for which the property valued would sell in open market, for this is doubtless the correct test of the value of property.* The manifest intention is that all taxable property shall bear its just proportion of the burdens of taxation. These two sections of the constitution harmonize with each other; and, by reading and considering them together, it becomes clear that all taxable property within this state must be assessed and taxed on a valuation fixed at its actual cash value, or as near such value as is reasonably practicable.
* * *” (Italics added.)

Heretofore we have set forth Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended. Analysis of those statutes in light of the case authority cited evidences a violation of the foregoing constitutional provisions in these respects:

1. Regardless of the full cash value of its property, or the cash price for which the property valued would sell on the open market, and despite the principle that *all* tangible property shall bear its just burden of taxation, a cooperative identified in the statutes in question enjoys a fixed ceiling or limitation on the valuation of its property, quite unknown to other persons, associations or corporations. Can all property be taxed in "proportion to its value", or "according to its value in money" if the valuation cannot be "in excess of \$50 times" the number of miles of transmission lines, or cannot be "in excess of \$10 times the number of circuit miles" of telephone lines? Obviously the answer is in the negative. Property cannot truly be taxed "according to its value in money" if a monetary limitation is placed on the extent of valuation. The Constitution of Utah is clearly violated in this respect by Section 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, and Section 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended. *State v. Thomas*, *supra*.

2. Even though the Utah constitutional provisions heretofore quoted make "*all* tangible property" subject to assessment and taxation, with certain exceptions not material here, Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended, subject the cooperatives thereunder to ad valorem taxation only to the extent a specific type of property is owned by the cooperative. In the one

case property of certain cooperative nonprofit electric corporations shall not be valued for the purpose of ad valorem taxation in excess of \$50 times *the number of miles of primary distribution of transmission lines*. Section 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953. A limit of ten dollars times *the number of circuit miles of line constituting the telephone system* is basic to valuation of the property of the cooperative nonprofit telephone corporations under Section 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended. Now, by what magic in taxation logic and experience may the required assessment of *all* tangible property be conditioned on the extent of ownership of a peculiar species of property?

There is no necessary correlation between the peculiar property basic to the formulae in Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953 and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended, and all tangible property owned by the cooperatives in question. Ownership of the former gives no certain indication of the value of the latter. Cooperatives may have equal line mileage, yet vary in tangible property valuation depending on density of customer population, geographical conditions, and the type and extent of service required by the customers. Quite contrary to producing the true cash value of all tangible property of the cooperatives in question, assessment of a specific type of property of the cooperative results in (a) a valuation of *that* specific property only for taxation purposes or (b) if a limit on the valuation of the specific property is embraced in the valuation formula, as is the case here, the resulting assessment may be only a fraction of the full cash value of the specific property, and a fortiori, a smaller fraction of the full cash value of all tangible property.

3. By adopting the formulae of Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended, the Legislature of Utah has extended exemptions to the cooperatives therein identified in that the full cash valuation is subject to a "ceiling", and only applicable to specific tangible property. We are of the conviction that the paramount law of this state precludes the escape from taxation of that property represented by, and to the extent of, the valuation over and above the maximum rate set forth in the foregoing statutes, and the exemption from taxation of tangible property other than that therein specified.

According to *State v. Armstrong*, 17 U. 166, 53 P. 981:

"* * * The meaning and intent manifest from the constitution are that no property shall be relieved from the burden of maintaining the government, except such as was defined and specified for exemption by that instrument. No one would contend for a moment that the legislature of this state has power in express terms to exempt property from taxation, other than that enumerated for exemption in the constitution; and yet in the enactment of the statute in question the legislature has undertaken to indirectly exempt property not so enumerated. This is an attempt to do indirectly that which could not be done directly, and the statute therefore is in violation of the constitution, and is void, as in excess of legislative authority. To prevent the legislature from exempting property not included within the exemptions of the constitution, express words of inhibition were not necessary. The positive direction that 'all property not exempt under the laws of the United States or under this constitution shall be taxed,' and that the rate of assessment and taxation shall be 'uniform and equal,' so that 'every person and cor-

poration shall pay a tax in proportion to the value of his, her, or its property,' with the enumeration of the property exempted, contains an implication against an exemption of any other property by the legislature. That direction itself operates as a restraint upon the legislative power. Cooley, Const. Lim. 209; *Konold v. Railway Co.*, 16 Utah 151."

It appears most fundamental that no exemption from taxation may be extended by the Legislature, unless authorized by the Constitution. That no such authority exists for the relief from the burden of maintaining the government accorded the plaintiffs, we respectfully submit.

4. As noted, Section 3, Article XIII of the Constitution of Utah, states:

"The Legislature shall provide by law a *uniform and equal rate of assessment and taxation* on all tangible property in the state according to its value in money. * * *" (Emphasis added.)

Violative of this provision are the statutes, Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended, which permit of taxation neither equally nor impartially laid on the taxpayers. The cooperatives identified by these statutes cannot be treated or classified for taxation purposes on a basis distinct and separate from other persons, associations, or corporations engaged in the same activity and owning property of an identical nature.

Plaintiffs apparently recognize one aspect of the "uniform and equal" principle when they write on page 23 of their brief as follows:

"* * * Whatever may be the justification of this practice with respect to highly profitable enter-

prises that have reached full earning power, it is abundantly clear, under court decisions of every state, that valuation based upon earning power is peculiarly appropriate to the enterprises here under discussion. This is not because they are cooperatives but because of the kind of territory in which they operate. *A stock corporation organized for profit and operating in similar territory, should of course be assessed on the same basis and with the same results.* * * *” (Emphasis added.)

Erroneously, plaintiffs seem to imply that the special advantage accorded them is not because of their cooperative status, but because of the geographical territory served. Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended, clearly specify the basis for the exemption as being the cooperative status, and at that, a particular genus of cooperative.

However, the plaintiffs do consider it but equitable that stock companies operating in like territory should be assessed on the same basis as the plaintiffs, and with the same results. Be that as it may, the Legislature was prompted by no such principle of equality when it enacted the legislation in question. The special exemptions and limitations therein are restricted to the few identified.

In *Stillman v. Lynch*, 56 Utah 540, 192 P. 272, this Court held:

“* * * The power of classification is not precluded by a constitutional provision that taxation be equal and uniform, but the fact that a statute makes no distinction between those in a class does not of itself justify special exemptions, additional deductions, or lower rates to those within a particu-

lar class unless the Constitution provides that taxation shall be uniform 'upon the same class of subjects.' * * *

"This section [the Montana statute] provides one system for assessing the property of national banks and another for assessing the moneyed capital employed in any other bank. National bank stock is assessed at its market value, the full value of the real estate being deducted. This legislation was held constitutional and valid in *Hilger v. Moore* (Mont.) 182 Pac. 477, in an exhaustive and well-considered opinion. But the Constitution of Montana contains an important clause that the Constitution of this state does not contain. Section 11 of article 12 of the Montana Constitution provides: 'Taxes shall be levied and collected by general laws and for public purposes only. They shall be uniform upon the same class of subjects within the territorial limits of the authority levying the tax.' Were a similar provision in the Utah Constitution, we should without hesitation uphold section 5869 as a valid act of classification. Many courts have upheld as valid and not repugnant to the Constitution similar statutory provisions, but an examination of the constitutional provisions upon which these decisions are based will, we think, disclose that they are invariably based upon a constitutional provision similar to that above quoted from the Montana Constitution. Our section 5869 operates with uniformity upon a class, but the difficulty of reconciling it with the Constitution of this state is that it is a special privilege, an added benefit, to one class which is accorded to no other. The section under consideration plainly gives to bank stockholders a deduction given to no other class of taxpayers. After provision is made for taxing bank stock, section 5869 says that in making such assessment there must also be deducted an additional sum to be ascertained in the manner therein provided.

This is an exception or deduction not accorded to other classes or groups of taxpayers, and is, therefore, beyond any question of doubt, repugnant to the Constitution, which provides for uniformity of taxation. Not only do we find no warrant in the Constitution that permits the deduction made by the Legislature, but, in our opinion, the deduction is prohibited by the Constitution. Suppose the Legislature had enacted a law putting farmers in a separate class for purposes of taxation, and had given them a flat 20 per cent reduction in the assessment of their property. Would any one question the invalidity of such a law? It would be rank and indefensible class legislation that could not possibly be harmonized with the Constitution. * * *

In the case at bar the plaintiffs have been placed in a separate class for taxation purposes and given limitations and exemptions on the assessment basis of their property. Is this not the rank, inequitable, indefensible, class legislation of the type referred to in the *Lynch* decision? Certainly, for the classification in this case results in discrimination, and the legislation permitting the exemption and deduction partakes of neither "uniformity" nor "equality," nor is the tax impartially laid on all taxpayers, who, absent the statute, would find themselves occupying the same status before the law.

At this point in our discussion we consider it appropriate to analyze the approach of the plaintiffs as set forth in their brief.

Plaintiffs' syllogism is: (1) Earning power is the primary element in ascertaining property valuation. (2) REA financed telephone and electric cooperatives have

low earning power because they serve rural areas. (3) Ergo, the property of a cooperative should not be valued for taxation purposes in excess of \$10 (\$50), times the wire miles of its system.

The defendant acknowledges earning power as one element in ascertaining property value, recognizes that the plaintiff cooperatives serve rural areas, but questions the conclusion as being a non sequitur. Fixing a maximum for valuation purposes does not reflect a formula wherein earning power, or any of the other elements necessary to ascertain full cash value, is applied. What if the earning power justifies a valuation in excess of the statutory ceiling? If anything, the statutes in question preclude full consideration of earning power as a factor in valuation. Logic and reason give no comfort to the position of plaintiffs.

POINT II.

SECTIONS 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, AND 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, AS AMENDED, VIOLATE SECTION 11, ARTICLE XIII, OF THE CONSTITUTION OF UTAH.

Section 11, Article XIII, of the Constitution of Utah, provides in part:

“* * * It [the State Tax Commission] shall assess mines and public utilities and adjust and equalize the valuation and assessment of property among the several counties. * * *”

In *State ex rel. P. S. C. v. Southern Pacific Co. et al.*, 95 U. 84, 79 P. 2d 25, this Court stated:

“We conclude therefore the Constitution has conferred on the State Tax Commission the power

of assessment of utilities, which includes fixing of valuations on utility property, and that this duty and power cannot be directly exercised by the Legislature or by it conferred on any other officer or board, * * *."

By enacting Sections 16-6-16 and 16-6-17, supra, the Utah Legislature has attempted to exercise the power of assessment of plaintiff utilities, including the fixing of the valuations of utility property, all in contravention of the Constitution and precedent of this court.

POINT III.

SECTIONS 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, AND 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, AS AMENDED, VIOLATE SECTION 26, ARTICLE VI, OF THE CONSTITUTION OF UTAH.

Section 26, Article VI, of the Constitution of Utah, provides in part:

"The Legislature is prohibited from enacting any private or special laws in the following cases:

"* * *

"8. Assessing and collecting taxes.

"* * *

"16. Granting to an individual, association or corporation any privilege, immunity or franchise.

"* * *

"In all cases where a general law can be applicable, no special law shall be enacted. * * *"

A law is special when it is not founded on natural, intrinsic, or constitutional distinctions which reasonably

justify difference in treatment, or where a classification is unrelated to a legitimate object to be accomplished. See 50 Am. Jur., Statutes, Sec. 7; 82 C. J. S., Statutes, Sec. 166 and cases cited therein; 2 Sutherland Statutory Construction, 3rd Ed., Sec. 2104. Although the form of the Utah laws under consideration is general, the result is "identification" rather than legitimate classification. The statutes, by a process of selection through counter generalizations, have eliminated what might otherwise be natural classifications. For example:

(a) The classification is not broad enough to apply to all cooperatives. A cooperative must be financed under the REA Act of 1936 before it is entitled to benefit of the statutes in question.

(b) The classification is not broad enough to apply to all nonprofit associations financed pursuant to the REA Act of 1936. Loans for rural electrification under the REA Act of 1936 may be made to "persons, corporations, states, territories, and subdivisions and agencies thereof, municipalities, peoples' utility districts and cooperative, nonprofit, or limited dividend associations, * * *." See 7 U. S. C. A., Section 904, as amended. Loans for rural telephone service under the REA Act of 1936 may be made to "persons now providing or who may hereafter provide telephone service in rural areas and to cooperative, nonprofit, limited dividend, or mutual associations." See 7 U. S. C. A., Sec. 922.

The fact that cooperatives have been segregated from the numerous other participants under the REA program,

for purposes of state taxation, can only add to the conclusion that the Utah tax statutes in question constitute special legislation.

(c) The classification is not broad enough to include all associations, for profit or otherwise, which serve similar territory, own property of an identical nature, enjoy the same net profit, or even adopting plaintiffs' theme, have the same earning power.

We are convinced that the equality so fundamental to general legislation finds no part in Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended. The classifications therein are arbitrary. An underlying legitimate object to be accomplished thereby:—enumerate, the Legislature did not; and imagine, we can not.

CONCLUSION

Sections 16-6-16, U. C. A. 1953, and 16-6-17, U. C. A. 1953, as amended, are unconstitutional. The legislation:

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