1959

Moon Lake Electric Association Inc. et al v. Utah State Tax Commission : Brief of Plaintiffs

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT AND AUTHORITIES

POINT I

Section 2 of Article XIII of the Constitution provides in part: "All tangible property in the State, not exempt under Laws of the United States, or under this constitution, *shall be taxed in proportion to its value*, to be ascertained as provided by law*** (Emphasis added.)

"The Legislature shall provide by law *a uniform and equal rate of assessment and taxation on all tangible property in the state according to its value in money***.*" (Emphasis added.)

In presenting the argument and authorities covering the two points raised, the plaintiff finds some difficulty in limiting its proof to the respective points. The question of "assessment and taxation . . . according to value in money" as required by Article 13 of the Constitution, and the further question raised by Section 26 of Article 6, Constitution of Utah, prohibiting "private or special laws affecting the assessment and collection of taxes and the granting to an individual association or corporation any privilege, immunity or fran-

chise," are so inter-related and so interwoven, that it is quite impossible to keep these two subjects distinct and apart.

It is the plaintiff's contention that we must first determine a method or formula for determining this question of "value in money" then supply such formula as will enable the taxing authorities to arrive at a base upon which the levy can be made. The only formula or rule that can find general acceptance in the classification of property. If this classification prescribed by law is such that if the uniform and equal rate of taxation is applied, the property is then taxed in the same proportion to its value as is all other tangible property, the method of arriving at the assessed valuation is not subject to constitutional objections.

It may be contended that classification must be employed if we are to have uniformity as required in Article 13 of our Constitution and it may well be urged that such classification contravenes Section 26 of Article 6, in that such classification becomes special or private in its application.

The opinion of the Attorney General holding these sections unconstitutional, concedes that legislation is valid, and the enactments must be sustained unless in violation of fundamental law.

This opinion holds that the language "*according to its value in money*" means that all property shall be valued, for the purpose of assessment, as near as is reasonably practicable, at its full cash value; in other words, that the valuation for assessment and taxation

shall be as near as is reasonably practicable, *equal to the cash price for which the property valued would sell in open market, for this is doubtless the correct test of the value of property.* (Emphasis added.)

In reaching the above conclusion the Attorney General refers to the case of "*State v. Thomas*, 16 U 86, 50 P. 615." There can be little dispute over the language of the Court in this case, yet it leaves some doubt as to how the State Tax Commission or a County Assessor could use this formula or yardstick to enable it or him to place a value upon any given property. The saleability of property is inexorably tied to many factors. It can hardly be contended that any taxing body could give effect to the provisions of Section 2 and 3 of Article XII, if their only instruction was to this effect: "You will place a value upon property in an amount equal to the price the property would sell for in the open market." It must be admitted that the Legislature did provide rules which it presumptively had a right to do, which rules are set out in the Section 16-6-16 and 16-6-17.

There can be no doubt that in the assessment and taxation of property, the Constitution intended that all taxable property shall bear its just proportion of the burdens of taxation. With this end result there can be no dispute. The practical problem of reaching this end result is quite a different thing.

The Thomas case did define the language "according to its value in money" as applied to assessment and taxation, to mean "Equal to the cash price for which the property valued would sell in open market, for this

is doubtless the correct test of the value of property." If we accept this definition as the measure of "value in money", then we would be compelled to make this determination before we could fix an assessment and levy a tax. If the various types and classifications of taxable property had a recognized market value, the problem would be reasonably simple. Actually, as a practical matter, various type of property are not frequently bought and sold on this open market, hence fixing a market value on such property would be, at best, a speculative thing. As Justice Cordozo said in *Williams v. Mayor and City Council of Baltimore*:

"Time with its tides brings new conditions which must be cared for by new laws. Sometimes the new conditions affect the members of a class. *If so, the correcting statute may be as narrow as the mischief.* The Constitution does not prohibit special laws inflexibly and always. It permits them where there are special evils with which the general laws are incompetent to cope***" (Emphasis added)

Because of the complexities of this problem, the legislature has in many instances provided a yardstick or formula which will enable the assessing and taxing authorities to arrive at these market values.

This approach by the Legislature is done pursuant to constitutional mandate. (Section 2 of Article XIII provides: "* * * shall be taxed in proportion to its value, *to be ascertained as provided by law.*" (Emphasis added), while Section 3 of the same Article 13 provides "* * * according to its value in money * * * *to be ascertained as provided by law*) * * *" (Emphasis added.)

This Court in more recent cases has, we believe, qualified the rule as announced in the Thomas case.

It must be kept in mind that the Constitution is applicable to every conceivable kind of property, anywhere within the jurisdiction of the State. To contend that the legislature must avoid a means calculated to give effect to the language of the Constitution by generalizing as to value, is a contention that can find little warrant in legal terminology or the practicality of any given situation. Land is assessed on the basis of its area; livestock on a per head basis; mines are usually assessed on its area together with some formula calculated to arrive at its worth. These illustration could be multiplied without end. This thing value is a relative term, affected and influenced by use, location, earning power and a variety of factors too numerous to mention. There *must be classification of property if there is to be compliance with these Constitutional provisions.* (Emphasis added.)

In the case entitled *State ex rel Public Service Commission v. Southern Pacific Co.*, reported in 79 Pac. 2nd at page 25 (A Utah case) the Court had this to say:

“The fair value as a rate base and the value in money for purposes of taxation of a public utility are not necessarily the same,” and the Court goes on to say: *“For the purposes of taxation of a public utility, where it is the present value of property in money that is to be determined, the present, past, and prospective future capacity to earn and the market value of stocks and bonds of the utility for a reasonable period*

antecedent to the making of the assessment constitutes the most reliable influential evidence of value."

The Court in the instant case makes these further observations concerning the question of value: "*The elements to be considered for determining value of a public utility's property for purposes of taxation are original or historical cost, cost of reproduction, less depreciation, conditions of competition in the industry, efficiency or lack of it in management, bonded indebtedness, current market value of stocks and bonds, actual present earnings and earnings over a period of years.*" (Emphasis added)

This Court has on frequent occasions considered this matter of value in its tax application. One of its most recent decisions is that contained in the case entitled "*United States Smelting Refining & Mining Co., v. Haynes, County Treasurer.*" reported in 176 P. 2nd. at page 622. Although the factual situation differs, yet the Court had occasion to consider the same constitutional matters as are here involved. The Haynes case involved the construction of a statute relative to determining the base or valuation of metalliferous mines for tax purposes. The Appellant contended in the Haynes case that to include premium payments in "proceeds realized" for the purpose of determining the valuation of the mine for assessment purposes, would violate the constitutional requirements as to uniformity of assessments and taxation as required by Sections 2, 3 and 4 of Article XIII, Constitution of Utah, and Section 8 of Article I, and Section I of 14th. Amendment to the

Constitution of the United States. In considering this contention of the Appellant, the Court had this to say:

“It will be observed that these provisions (Sections 2, 3 and 4 of Article 13 of the Constitution of the State of Utah) require that all tangible property, including metalliferous mines, shall be subjected to a uniform and equal rate of assessment according to its value in money. *The method or yardstick by which the valuation in money is to be determined shall be prescribed by the Legislature. It is not required that the same yardstick or method of determining value shall be used with respect to all kinds of property. But the different formulae which may be applied to different kinds of property must be such that they aim and tend to secure for assessment purposes a valuation fair and equitable in comparison with and commensurate with the valuation of other kinds of property. When the valuation thus secured is such that if the uniform and equal rate of taxation is applied the property is taxed in the same proportion to its value as is all other tangible property, the method of arriving at the assessed valuation is not subject to constitutional objections as violative of Article XIII.*” (Emphasis added)

It is conceded that the statutory method of valuing metalliferous mines for taxation purposes at \$5 per acre plus a multiple or sub-multiple of the net proceeds is a proper and constitutional formula for determining the value of the mines for assessment purposes. See *South Utah Mines and Smelters v. Beaver County*, 262 U.S. 325, 43 S. Ct. 577, 67 L. Ed. 1004; *Mercur Gold Mining & Milling Co. v. Spry*, 16 U. 222 52 P. 382; *Salt*

Lake County v. Utah Copper Co. 10 cir., 294 F. 199; *Tintic Standard Mining Co. v. Utah County*, 80 Utah 491, 15 P. 2nd. 633; *Byrne v. Fulton Oil Co.*, 85 Mont. 329, 278 P. 314.

But it is argued that to include premium payments in the gross proceeds of mines violates the rule because: (a) it amounts to classification of mines into different groups for taxation purposes. (b) in determining the value of the mine in 1944, it takes into consideration the production of the mine 1941 as well as the proceeds in 1943. (c) The value of the mine would be based inversely upon the production quotas fixed by the Government instead of upon the net proceeds. (d) It amounts to fixing values upon gross costs rather than upon net proceeds. The argument to sustain these points are rather abstruse and tenuous. Instead of analyzing and answering each argument, we shall consider the basic question and therein dispose of all points raised.

The Court then goes on to consider the question of whether the inclusion of premium payment infringes the uniformity clause of the Constitution. The Court has this to say:

“Use of proceeds as a basis for determining valuation for taxation purposes has been used not only for mines but railroads, motor carriers, and other public utilities. The uniformity clause, when applied to formulae based on proceeds, does not require that all individuals or companies within the class to which the formula is applied have the same income or the same source of obtaining their proceeds but merely that the rule for com-

putation of proceeds apply alike, uniformly, to all within the class to which the proceeds formula applies."

The Court in the Haynes case quotes with approval the case of *State v. Great Northern R. Co.*, 174 Minn. 3, 218 N.W. 167, 169, in which case a railroad complained because of its assessment based on gross earnings; the railroad had enjoyed a windfall because of certain ore contracts. The law was assailed on the ground that it might result in a higher tax on one railroad than on another although the cost of building and replacing the roadbed of each would be the same. The Court said: "The taxing authorities must take gross earnings as they find them. They do not fix earnings * * * Large earnings give value, and the road has a unitary value which cannot be disregarded * * * such earnings give the defendant's property great value which reflects itself in taxes."

In the case entitled: *Anaconda Copper Mining Co. v. Junod*, 71 Mont. 132, 227 P. 1001, which case involved again the computation of net proceeds, and the Appellant complained that to apply the rule would violate the application of the uniformity of assessment clause of the Constitution. The Court in answer to this claim had this to say: "The Constitutional requirements of uniformity and equality were not violated because some mines had bigger incomes or smaller expenses on the same mining operations."

It is not difficult to find a multitude of cases wherein this question of value, has received the close and

scrutinizing attention of many Courts, both State and Federal. As the tax burden ever increases in local, County, State and Federal spheres, it is fair to assume that this matter of value will ever grow more provocative. It is difficult to conceive of an expression more difficult to define, one more widely misunderstood, than the value of any article, or service. Rates based on value, taxation linked to value, these and the many other facets of the word, has yet to find common acceptance. The unquenchable hunger for more taxes, and the diminishing types of property, which can be reached for revenue, combine to make this problem one of concern to the people who pay, and the unit of government bent on spending. How far beyond its present level this tax and spend orgy can go, poses a problem that confounds he who makes even a casual inquiry into its effect. It is not the purpose of the authors of this presentation to avoid its just share of this common burden. It is our earnest contention that "value" or its "value in money" as used in the Constitution can and is best arrived at by the formula or method set out in Sections 16-6-16 and 16-6-17 UCA 1953.

In *Parson v. Detroit & Canada Tunnel Co.*, 15 F. Supp 986 (1936) and affirmed 92 F. (2nd.) 893 (1937), the taxpayer operated a tunnel between Detroit and Windsor, Canada. Its property was required to be taxed at its *true cash value*. The total cost of the property was over \$3,600,000. Its replacement cost was approximately \$2,500,000. During 1932, 1933 and 1934, the property was annually assessed at over \$3,500,000. A

fair capitalization of earnings showed a valuation of approximately \$850,000. The Court found that the tunnel company had operated efficiently and economically, and that all reasonable efforts had been made to increase its income and reduce its expenses.

The District Court, in rejecting the assessment based solely on original cost less depreciation, said (page 997):

“It is well established principle of law in arriving at the true cash value, within the provisions of the Michigan Laws and other similar statutes of a single purpose, public utility property, such as here involved, whose only value is derived from its capacity to earn money by its use for a definite single purpose, the so-called *capitalization of net income method sometimes called the net earning methods*, should be given a *primary and paramount weight* either as the sole method of valuations or used in combination with the stock and bond valuation method, so-called, *where as in the present case, it appears that the property has received economical and prudent management and that such method shows a valuation substantially less than the depreciated cost of such property, as to render an assessment based on such cost clearly and grossly excessive and arbitrary.*” (Underscoring supplied.)

The Court accordingly reduced the assessment from \$3,600,000.00 to \$848,000 for each of the years in question, basing the new assessment solely on the earning power of the property.

The Circuit Court of appeals for the 6th Circuit Court affirmed the above decision of the District Court.

In its opinion, reported in 92 F (2d) 833 at page 836, the Court said:

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